THURSTON PARISH COUNCIL

MINUTES of the COUNCIL MEETING held on Wednesday 4th December 2024 commencing at 7.00pm in Thurston Community Library, Norton Road, Thurston.

Present: Cllrs. Dashper (in the Chair), Allen, Balaam, Bond, Gerrish, Marsh, Millest, Morris, Moy, Rainbow and West.

Also in attendance: County Cllr. Otton (in part); District Cllr. Richardson (in part); Mrs Waples, Clerk, and Mrs Gladwell, Deputy Parish Clerk. There were no members of the public in attendance.

1. **OPENING** – the Chair opened the meeting advising all that the Protocol adopted by the Parish Council for reporting at Parish Council Meetings, would be taken as read. A copy of the Protocol can be downloaded from the website: https://thurstonparishcouncil.uk/parish-council/policies-procedures-and-strategy/.

The Chair asked that recognition be given to the recent loss of Derrick Haley who had committed much of his time and effort in supporting the community of Thurston in both his role as District Councillor, Parish Councillor and past Chair of Thurston Parish Council. It was agreed that it would be appropriate for the council to send a card of condolence to the family.

2. APOLOGIES –

- a) Council to receive apologies for absence apologies for absence were received from Cllr. Smith.
- b) Council noted the submission of apologies from District Cllr. Bradbury and PCSO Brown.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS FROM COUNCILLORS INCLUDING GIFTS OF HOSPITALITY EXCEEDING £50 -

- a) To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests; other registerable and non-registerable interests as detailed in Appendix B of the LGA Model Code of Conduct – Cllr. Morris declared an other registerable interest in Agenda Item 15a. It was noted that as this was a registrable interest, Cllr. Morris would leave the meeting, and the agenda would be rearranged to cover items 15b and 15c to allow Cllr. Morris to partake therein. There were no further interests declared for the meeting.
- b) To receive notification of gifts or hospitality exceeding £50 there were none submitted.
- c) To note the determination of requests for dispensations in accordance with Council's Dispensation Policy there were none to be reported.

4. MINUTES OF THE FOLLOWING MEETINGS: (all as previously circulated):

- a) To approve the following minutes: full Council Meeting of 6th November 2024 it was resolved to approve the minutes as previously circulated and to give consent for the Chair to sign the minutes as a true and accurate record of the proceedings that took place, in accordance with legislation.
- 5. **REPORTS FOR INFORMATION** the following reports were submitted: all of which can be viewed under Appendix C and D (separate file).
 - Report from County Councillor Penny Otton the written report was taken as read. The following matters
 were brought to the meeting's attention:
 - CIL Bid and application for planning consent for car park to the rear delegated to the Highways Officer to make a decision.
 - > Local Highways Budget funds are still available to be allocated short timescales to make a decision.
 - Warm Homes and Health Checks press release has been issued to all clerks. Could be used for VAS; Village Gates; yellow or white lines.
 - New form of Local Government in Suffolk.
 - Report from District Cllrs. David Bradbury and Harry Richardson the written report as submitted was taken as read. The following matters were brought to the meeting's attention
 - CIL bid for College expansion car park going to cabinet next week with a recommendation for approval.
 - > CIL bid of £6,000 for Network Rail was approved under delegated powers.
 - Local Government in Suffolk districts might have some form of influence over the options, but the final decision is likely to be made by the government.

So approved and signed at the meeting of 8th January 2025

6. POLICE MATTERS

- a) To receive a report from PCSO Brown, the match funded PCSO from Stowmarket Community Policing Team (CPT) on crimes relating to Thurston – the written report from PCSO Matthew Brown covering the month of November 2024 was circulated to all Councillors. It was confirmed that there had been 37 calls within the month for the parish and 12 recorded crimes. Foot patrols had been conducted in the area along with vehicle patrols and intelligence collected from members of the public had been submitted. Speed checks in the areas of Sandpit Lane (21 vehicles in a 30-minute period with the highest speed recorded as 28mph) and Stoney Lane (no speeding vehicles were recorded within a 45-minute period). The roads layout and parked vehicles make it very hard for vehicles to travel at speed, however, along with the e-mail from the parish council he had also requested SDR's to be placed in the area to monitor speeds and numbers of vehicles. Joint visits are being planned with Housing Associations to problematic properties that have been having an impact on policing and Anti-Social Behaviour in the area. Due to last week being County Lines week inputs at the Thurston Community College have been conducted in relation to drugs and the people that could be targeted by organised crime groups.
- b) To consider matters for referral to Stowmarket CPT the Clerk advised that she had made PCSO Brown aware of road users not obeying the road closure signs and issues over drivers not stopping at the crossing points on Norton Road.

7. PUBLIC FORUM –

a) To receive matters of concern from members of the public in attendance on the agenda submitted – there were no members of the public present.

8. STATUTORY BUSINESS -

- a) To receive nominations for the vacant post of Councillor (1) a further nomination had been submitted for consideration by the parish council with the co-option form circulated to all. Council considered the nomination for the vacant post for Councillor and following a vote taken in accordance with the LGA 1972 Sch. 12, para 13, it was resolved that Yvonne Hamel-Cooke be co-opted onto the parish council, aif. It was confirmed that the Clerk would inform the successful applicant and council granted permission for them to sign their Declaration of Acceptance of Office prior to the next meeting.
- b) To consider a response to the Government consultation on enabling remote attendance and proxy voting at local authority meetings the meeting agreed that it found it easier to discuss things in person and although meetings were held remotely in the pandemic it should not be given that this was an ideal way to determine the precedent. It was considered that issues to be addressed would be regular nonattendance, hard to monitor; matters to be held in camera, how to monitor and overall limited ability to hear and take part without significant investment into the infrastructure for allowing remote meetings. It was agreed that as all councillors lived within the village boundary, they were close enough to attend. The meeting disputed that there would be better attendance by members of the public and overall felt that council meetings should continue in person thereby being visual in representation. The meeting resolved that it was not in favour and agreed to delegate to the Clerk to formulate a response to the questions raised, aif.

9. TO CONSIDER MATTERS RELATING TO PLANNING:

- a) Planning Applications to be considered by the Council received from Mid Suffolk District Council:
 - DC/24/02429 Hybrid Planning Application Full Planning application: Erection of 3 no. dwellings with garaging and open space provision on adjacent site. Outline Planning application (Access Points to be considered, Appearance, Layout, Landscaping and Scale to be Reserved) Erection of 7 no. dwellings with associated garaging involving the demolition of an existing building and the provision of allotments and community land with its own independent access and car parking on adjacent land. The hybrid application includes a package of mitigation offered by the developer. PLEASE NOTE THIS APPLICATION HAS BEEN REVISED AND NOW INCLUDES THE PROPOSAL PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED UNDER APPLICATION REFERENCE DC/23/02430 (BARRELLS ROAD). Location: Land at Norton Road and land at Barrells Road the Chair provided an overview of the application and gave a brief background of the description of the benefits that would be transferred to the parish council if the applications were successful. Deal is significant for the parish as this brings land within the parish under the ownership of the parish council for the benefit of the community. All agreed that the parish council would continue with its stance of supporting the

application on the grounds that the community benefit that would accrue to the parish of Thurston outweighed the harm of an additional nine houses, aif.

- b) To receive commentary on the parish liaison meeting held with Vistry Homes on 8th November 2024 no real progress since last meeting. Still waiting on the travel plan and a breakdown of the residential mark-up. There was no change to the build programme and the woodland was on target for transfer to the parish council. A request had been submitted for a visit to look at the woodland and the stream that runs through the land. Drainage area to the front has been completed and the planting schedule to include the dead trees has still to be actioned. Topsoil given to the parish council has been used to fill out trip hazards within the play areas. Next meeting was scheduled for 13th December in the site office on Cavendish View.
- c) To receive commentary on the parish liaison meeting held with Bloor Homes on 4th December 2024 a verbal update was given in which the following matters were covered: swales on either side of the new road layout - potential for misalignment once vegetation had grown up (Bloor to review this); southern entrance all complete; DA cant still on site for s278 works (external) and road layouts (internal); safety audit for Fishwick Corner has been completed, report awaited, minor snagging issues anticipated. Hedgerow along Beyton Road and Thurston Road will be retained (once tidied) unless visibility issues dictate otherwise; connection to the sub-station at The Acorns will be done under traffic lights as opposed to road closures. Road closures will be necessary for construction of the northern entrance and works to Pokeriage Corner, but this might need to be staggered as Highways have confirmed that there is no room for closures in February 2025. Northern access will not be for site traffic but for access to the 1st phase of housing and the show house / sales office. Sales cabin to be opened in March 2025 with a target date for the show house of May 2024. 3 showhouses will be built followed by 12 units and bungalows fronting Beyton Road. 1st occupation is still expected July / August. Flooding at Pokeriage Corner will be addressed once the work is undertaken but any issues relating to drainage will need to be sorted prior to 1st occupation. Once dwellings got to roof level, there was an expectation that noisy / invasive works might become an issue and appropriate measures would be taken to address any impact on neighbouring properties.

10. TO CONSIDER MATTERS RELATING TO THE COMMUNITY OF THURSTON:

a) To receive matters relating to the production of the Thurston Community Newsletter – there were no known issues with production or distribution. The meeting noted that distributors for part of College Park & part of Mill Lane were being actively sought.

11. TO CONSIDER MATTERS RELATING TO FINANCE:

- a) To approve the accounts awaiting payment including those coming forth (*Paper 1 04.12.24*) the items awaiting payment were verified and explanations given where appropriate. All were in agreement to approve those items as submitted under Paper 1 for payment, except for the High Street Safari Trail Package, which was paid the previous month, as seen at Appendix B, aif.
- b) To note the accounts paid since the last meeting (*Paper 2 04.12.24*) the meeting retrospectively approved those payments that had been made away from the meeting as detailed under Paper 2 as seen at Appendix B, aif.
- c) To note receipts allocated since the last meeting (*Paper 3 04.12.24*) Council noted the receipt of monies received as identified at Appendix B.
- d) To note the Balance of the Accounts for the period ending 31.10.24 (Paper 4 04.12.24) all noted the confirmed bank balances of £272,391.86 across both accounts held in the name of the Parish Council. The statement of accounts would also be reviewed by ClIr. Rainbow following the submission of the Clerk's workings. The accounts to end of October were confirmed as having been reviewed and verified by ClIr. Rainbow.
- e) To receive the 1st Draft of the Budget for the year 2025-2026 as reviewed and recommended for approval by the Policy and Resources Committee (*Paper 5 04.12.24*) the Clerk provided the meeting with an overall view of the budget being proposed. Discussion followed over the reasoning behind the setting of an above inflation budget; the understanding of changes brought about in 2011 under the Localism Act in relation to the delivering of services and the manner in which it had had an impact on the lowest tier of government in terms of finances. Council resolved to set an indicative budget for 2025-2026 in the sum of £247,372 with

funding sources to be revisited in January 2025 once the tax base is confirmed, aif. The precept to be set, taking into account reserves and grants, would also be set at the meeting in January 2025. The meeting was also made aware that the government had confirmed that there will be no council tax referendum principles for mayoral authorities or town and parish councils for the upcoming financial year. This further means that there is no imposed cap on the limit by which the precepts can be raised.

- f) To note the CIL report for November 2024 including nominal sums for potential CIL expenditure for the coming year (*Paper 6 04.12.24*) Council noted the paper submitted showed receipts to date for the year at £95,023 with incurred expenditure of £891,343. Once all committed expenditure had been realised, the meeting noted the retained CIL balance would be £117,460.
- g) Council to consider the requests for financial support (*Paper 7 04.12.24*) Council resolved to support the two proposed donations as identified in the paper submitted and awarded the following sums: Headway Suffolk £500 and Tiny Toes Toddler Group £280, aif.
- h) Lloyds Bank and amendments to the council's banking accounts council was advised that the three Treasurers Accounts as operated by the parish council would be changing to a Business Account (sort codes and account numbers remain the same) effective 14th January 2024. The original accounts, under the parish council's umbrella, were designed for smaller clubs and societies with a lower turnover of under £50,000. There will also be a fee of £8.50 per month for each Business Account. The accounts would also be charged for day-to-day banking although to assist with the change a 100% discount would be applied until January 2026. It was noted that once charging begun, currently Lloyds were offering 100 free electronic payments a month (Direct debits, standing orders and faster payment debits). The Clerk confirmed that this would impact the Library Account as operated by the Parish Council on behalf of the Friends Library Group and the Recreation Ground Charity Account as operated by the Parish Council as Sole Trustee. She had commenced discussions with the Chair of the Friends as to the best way forward.

12. COUNCILLOR REPORTS:

- a) To report village matters of concern to the Clerk which, if appropriate, would be actioned under delegated powers:
 - > Management company on Grange Park had imposed significant increases in its charges.
 - School Lane sign had been replaced.
 - Birch Road sign still missing.
 - Road signs work requires an update.
 - Bus routes missing Heath Road the Clerk confirmed that Dan's Coaches have been made aware of this and will review the schedule in June.
 - Fishwick Corner positive comment on new junction but could there be additional street lighting on the new road.
 - > Lack of streetlights between Norton Road and Fox and Hounds.
- b) To receive items for information only from parish council appointed representatives on outside bodies/groups:
 - Library Carols in the Garden that afternoon. Events planned throughout December. Main issue is the lack of clarity on the future of the libraries.
 - New Green Christmas light switch on held in November well attended. Good disco also well attended. Health and safety checks will be carried out soon. Grant awarded for the works to the bar.
 - > Cavendish Hall popular venue. Recent fundraising evening very successful.
 - CATS awaiting the NR appraisal; possibility of mitigation that Greater Anglia might put in if the crossing does not go ahead. Ancient plans discovered for the station which might give hope with regards to access to the station from Station Hill.
 - Community Voice Chair of Beyton confirmed that the work that has been done through Field of Dreams has allowed the water to flow as was intended. It was noted that water was lying high in the ditches at Pepper Lane.
 - Barton Road by the Mere adjacent to Barton Farmhouse flooding.
 - TCP Agatha Christie play went well although audiences were a little light. Vicar of Dibley in May 2025 is the next production.

13. CLERK'S REPORT – to receive and consider information from the Clerk and Deputy Clerk and in particular:

- a) To receive the reports of items actioned under delegated powers:
 - Forthcoming s278 works Bloor Homes, Beyton Road the Clerk made the meeting aware that she would be attending a meeting with SCC Highways, representatives from Bloor Homes and DA Cant over the scheduling of further road closures along Beyton Road for s278 works. This would take place in Ipswich on 18th December and the Clerk would provide an u progress report at the next meeting.
 - Road closures the Clerk confirmed that she had dealt with a number of emails and telephone conversations relating to road closures and their connection to s278 works as being implemented by various developers around the village. Some emails had been particularly unpleasant whilst others, once the clerk had explained the remit of the parish council, had professed a greater understanding.
 - Street lighting operation for Christmas and the New Year 2025 the Clerk stated that she had confirmed with SCC Street Lighting Department that once again the parish council would follow the example of SCC and leave the lights on for Christmas eve into Christmas day and New Year's eve into New Year's day.
 - Linage Pokeriage Corner despite an early request (02.08.2024) by the Clerk for enhanced lining at this junction prior to the closure of Fishwick Corner, SCC Highways had only managed to achieve carriageway relining at this junction as of 2nd November 2024.
 - Speedy Stoney Lane following reports from residents over excessive speeding along Stoney Lane, the Clerk had liaised with the Speed Enforcement team at SCC who had agreed to deploy a SDR at this location. Once the results were in, they would update the parish council as to their findings.
 - Old Norton Road barrier damaged following a collision. The Clerk reported that SCC Highways had confirmed that they had ordered work to be carried out which they hoped will resolve the issues raised within approximately 14 calendar weeks (20.11.2024).
 - Missing trees Thurston Park the Planning Manager had confirmed that he had liaised with his Operations Director on this matter who had confirmed that the trees were in the process of being replaced and that they would check back at the end of the month (21.11.2024).
 - Mill Lane fly tipping has been reported and will be monitored.
- b) To receive an update on works to the allotments on Denbury Park it was noted that the Clerk had undertaken a site meeting and confirmed that the works had now been carried out in accordance with the planning conditions and agreed handover briefing. This had been communicated to Denbury Homes and the council's legal team to allow for the transfer into the parish council's ownership to be progressed. Since it was almost a year since the original draft transfer was signed by the parish council, a new copy had been received for formal signing by the Chair and the Vice-Chair in the presence of the Clerk as Proper Officer. This would be signed that evening and returned to council's legal team to allow the transfer to be finalised.
- c) To receive items of correspondence for noting items for noting and not requiring a decision were circulated to all councillors once received.

14. TO CONFIRM THE DATE OF FUTURE MEETINGS: all to take place in Thurston Community Library –

- a) Council's Committees Meeting 18th December 2024 commencing at 7.00pm in the Community Library, Norton Road
- b) Council Meeting 8th January 2025 commencing at 7.00pm in the Community Library, Norton Road.
- c) Council's Committees Meeting 22nd January 2024 commencing at 7.00pm in the Community Library, Norton Road.
- **15.** TO RESOLVED THAT UNDER THE PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO MEETINGS) ACT 1960, THE PUBLIC BE EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING DUE TO THE CONDIENTIAL NATURE OF THE BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED it was resolved that the following matters be held in camera and that Agenda Items 15b and 15c be discussed prior to Agenda Item 15a.
 - a) Formerly 15b To consider the criteria for the allocation on allotments on Thurston Park council agreed that it would not make a formal decision or open up a formal waiting list until the planning application for Barrells Road and associated open space and allotment had been determined. It was however agreed that the council was minded to allow the allotments to be allocated to those residents on Thurston Park on a first come basis, aif.
 - b) Formerly 15c To consider the request from the Recreation Ground Charity to carry out a thermal imaging assessment of the pavilion on Church Road council approved the use of the camera for such an assessment

acknowledging that the information gathered might form the basis for an application for a grant to fund identified works, aif.

Having declared a registrable interest, Cllr. Morris left the meeting and did not participate in the discussion or vote that followed.

- c) To consider the position statement from the Thurston Relief in Need Charity following receipt of the statement, it was resolved that the council should commence discussions with the Charity to allow this project to progress. It was also agreed that the site assessment on the land at Heath Road should be revisited in terms of suitability for leisure and recreational facilities.
- **16. CLOSURE OF THE MEETING** there being no other business the meeting was closed at 9.15pm.

Appendix A - Glossary of Common Abbreviations used

A:f	All in favour
Aif	All in favour
AGAR	Annual Governance and Accountability Return
APM	Annual Parish Meeting
ASB	Anti-social Behaviour
BACS	Bankers Automated Clearing Services
BUAB	Built Up Area Boundary
BMSDC	Babergh & Mid Suffolk District Councils
CC	Credit Card
CAS	Community Action Suffolk
CCG	Clinical Commissioning Group
CEO	Chief Executive Officer
Chq.	Cheque
Cllr.	Councillor
СМР	Construction Management Programme
Cttee.	Committee
DC	District Council
DCLG	Department of Communities and Local Government
DD	Direct Debit
FOI	Freedom of Information
FR	Financial Regulations
GA	Greater Anglia
GPoC	General Power of Competence
HMRC	Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs
HRA	Habitats Regulations Assessment
LGBCE	Local Government Boundary Commission for England
LHB	Locality Highways Budget
LPA	Local Planning Authority
MSDC	Mid Suffolk District Council
NEAP	Neighbourhood Equipped Area for Play
NHS	National Health Service
NDP	Neighbourhood Development Plan
NP	Neighbourhood Plan
NR	Network Rail
PC	Parish Council
PCSO	Police Community Support Officer
Pdf	Portable Document Format
PIIP	Parish Infrastructure Investment Plan
PROW	Public Rights of Way
RAAC	Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated Concrete
RFO	Responsible Financial Officer
SARS	Suffolk Accident Rescue Service
SEA	Strategic Environmental Assessment
SALC	Suffolk Association of Local Councils
SCC	Suffolk County Council
SDR	Sensor Data Record
SID	Speed Indicator Device
SLA	Service Level Agreement
SNT	SaferNeighbourhood Team
SO	Standing Order
SPS	Suffolk Preservation Society
тсс	Thurston Community College
TOR	Terms of Reference
ТРО	Tree Preservation Order
TPS	Thurston Primary School
TRO	Traffic Regulation Order
VAS	Vehicle Activated Sign
VCSE	Voluntary, community and social enterprise organisations
V COL	voluntary, community and social enterprise organisations

Appendix B - Accounts submitted for payment

Accounts approved for payment 4 December 2024	Voucher	MET	HOD NET	тт уат	TOTAL
SHO Cleaning & Maintenance - Office Cleaning	2284	Bacs	120.00	0.00	120.00
Gipping Press - December Newsletter	2285	Bacs	1320.00	0.00	1320.00
SHO Cleaning & Maintenance – Graffiti removal from	2286	Bacs	60.00	0.00	60.00
Youth Shelter, MUGA court					
High Street Safari – removed as paid previously	2287	Bacs	0.00	0.00	0.00
High Street Safari – Correx boards for trail	2288	Bacs	45.00	9.00	54.00
Thurston Recreation Ground Charity - Hire of venue for	2289	TRF	25.50	0.00	25.50
meeting					
Suffolkcloud – website maintenance	2290	Bacs	200.00	0.00	200.00
Rees Pryer Architects – professional services in relation to	2291	Bacs	935.00	187.00	1122.00
Sports Pavilion project					
Kompan – cradle east Heath Road	2292	Bacs	380.80	76.16	456.96
Kompan – repairs to play equipment – Thurst Café	2293	Bacs	344.88	68.97	413.85
JRB Enterprise Ltd – bio dog bags	2294	Bacs	82.40	16.48	98.88
SARS – Donation	2295	Bacs	500.00	0.00	500.00
CAB West Suffolk – Donation	2296	Bacs	500.00	0.00	500.00
CAB Mid Suffolk – Donation	2297	Bacs	500.00	0.00	500.00
Mid Suffolk Croquet Club - Donation	2298	Bacs	500.00	0.00	500.00
SHO Cleaning & Maintenance – refill trips hazards	2299	Bacs	150.00	0.00	150.00
SHO Cleaning & Maintenance – works in village	2300	Bacs	120.00	0.00	120.00

Accounts paid since 1 st November 2024	Voucher	METHOD	NETT	VAT ⁻	TOTAL
Realise Futures – bench for wildlife garden – New Green	2263	Bacs	252.50	50.50	303.00
New Green Trust – Office Suite Rent (Nov 24)	2264	SO	468.19	0.00	468.19
O2 – Mobile Phone – Oct - Nov24 (Clerk's Phone)	2265	DD	11.96	2.39	14.35
BT – Pavilion Broadband Sept - Nov 24	2266	DD	42.30	8.46	50.76
O2 – Editor's & Deputy's Mobile Phone – oct - Nov 24	2267	DD	23.92	4.78	28.70
ICO – Data Protection Fee	2774	DD	35.00	0.00	35.00
Lloyds Annual Card Fee	2275	CC	32.00	0.00	32.00
Amazon Annual Subscription Fee	2276	CC	95.00	0.00	95.00
Adobe Systems Software – Acrobat Pro DC	2277	CC	16.64	3.33	19.97
Euroffice – Paper and folders	2278	CC	54.87	10.98	65.85
Euroffice – inks and paper	2279	CC	144.85	28.98	173.83
RBL – Remembrance Wreaths	2280	CC	79.17	15.83	95.00
Amazon – inks	2281	CC	120.79	24.16	144.95
Sackers – Recycling October 24	2282	DD	153.70	30.74	184.44
Aerial Direct – Office internet and phones – October 24	2283	DD	81.75	16.35	98.10
Salaries – November 2024	2268-2273	Bacs	9882.68	0.00	9882.68

Items paid following authorisation at meeting of 6th November 2024

SHO Cleaning & Maintenance - Office Cleaning	2252	Bacs	96.00	0.00	96.00
Gipping Press - November Newsletter	2253	Bacs	1179.00	0.00	1179.00
Countryside Conservation & Tree Services - Hedge	2254	Bacs	1900.00	380.00	2280.00
work, village tidy and safety work					
SWT Trading Ltd - Thurston Open Spaces Biodiversity	2255	Bacs	1448.50	289.70	1738.20
Audit					
New Green Community Trust - Recycling Credits	2256	Bacs	926.91	0.00	926.91
Thurston Recreation Ground Charity - Hire of venue for	2257	TRF	17.00	0.00	17.00
meeting					
Parish Online - Mapping Software – annual fee	2258	Bacs	190.00	38.00	228.00

So approved and signed at the meeting of $8^{\mbox{\tiny th}}$ January 2025

TCP - Part of CIL Bid – venue hire – 2 invoices	2259	Bacs	432.00	0.00	432.00
J West - Expenses – Planning Meeting	2260	Bacs	27.50	0.00	27.50
TCP - Part of CIL Bid – Stage scripts	2261	Bacs	222.00	0.00	222.00
High Street Safari - Trail package	2262	Bacs	549.00	109.80	658.80

Receipts received since 1 st November 2024	METHOD	NETT	VAT	TOTAL
Lloyds Bank – Interest	BACS	207.54	0.00	207.54
Newsletter adverts – renewals	BACS	488.00	0.00	488.00
1 st Thurston Scouts – remembrance wreath	BACS	27.50	0.00	27.50
MSDC – Recycling credit – glass only	BACS	589.73	0.00	589.73